## MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON Tuesday, 17th May, 2016, 6.30pm.

#### PRESENT:

Councillors: Claire Kober (Chair), Jason Arthur, Ali Demirci, Joe Goldberg, Alan Strickland, Bernice Vanier, Peray Ahmet, Eugene Ayisi and Elin Weston

#### 1. FILMING AT MEETINGS

The Leader referred to agenda item 1 as shown on the agenda in respect of filming at this meeting and Members noted this information.

#### 2. APOLOGIES

There were no apologies for absence.

The Leader of the Council welcomed Councillors: Weston, Ahmet and Aiyisi to the Cabinet.

#### 3. URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business to consider.

#### 4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor Ayisi declared a personal interest in Item 8, Scrutiny Review of Community Infrastructure Levy – Governance Arrangements as he had chaired this review, in his former Scrutiny Panel role.

# 5. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN PRIVATE, ANY REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED AND THE RESPONSE TO ANY SUCH REPRESENTATIONS

No representation were received.

#### 6. MINUTES

The minutes of the Cabinet meeting held on the 15<sup>th</sup> of March 2016 were agreed as a correct record of the meeting.

#### 7. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS



The Cabinet had received both a Petition and Deputation from the Friends of Wolves Lane Centre in relation to agenda item 9, the future delivery of Wolves Lanes Horticultural Centre.

The Petition was supporting the continuation of current activities at the Wolves Lane Centre and opposing any closure or movement of the functions of the Centre.

As indicated in committee standing order 31.1, the Petition was handed to the Leader and a response to the Petition would be reported to the next ordinary meeting of the Cabinet on the 14<sup>th</sup> of June 2016.

Mr Chinn, spokesperson for the Friends of Wolves Lane Group, was invited by the Leader to put forward his deputation to the Cabinet. Mr Chinn began by welcoming the commitment of the Council to extend funding for the Horticultural Centre until the end of March 2017. This would allow the Friends of Wolves Lane Group to work with the existing Members of staff of the Horticultural Centre on developing a social enterprise for supporting the Centre continue in operation. Key to their structure would be working with the Council in an efficient working partnership and establishing a cooperative arrangement with other like minded organisations to help utilise parts of the Centre as the Council relinquish them. It was essential to have transitional arrangements in place to support vulnerable members of the community with learning difficulties and mental health issues that worked and used the services of the Centre.

Mr Chinn referred to the consultation which had been considered as part of the decision making on Adult's service provision in November 2015. This indicated the Centre as a valuable resource and one of the few places in the borough that offered day opportunities for teenagers and adults with learning difficulties and autism.

Mr Chinn referred to the proposal to proceed with an expression of interest process for the future management of the site. The group felt that that the criteria must include continuing and developing services at the Horticultural Centre. The deputation explained that, currently, the adult learning and teaching facility at the Centre helped 60 adults/teenagers with learning difficulties, with the support of 9 volunteers, and was able to support the visit of 3000 primary school children. Mr Chinn spoke of the two local teenager groups, funded by the Council, using the Centre which could be expanded and continued.

Mr Chinn continued to highlight the unique characteristics of the Centre, its value to the local community and some alternative ideas that can be taken forward to utilise the available facilities at the Centre and attract further visitors. This could be supported by the Friends group.

In response to the Cabinet Member for Environment's question, the group would consider working with other like minded organisations that had a horticultural background in taking the Centre's services forward.

The Leader was familiar with the work of the Wolves Lane Horticultural Centre and had recently visited the Centre with Mr Chinn. The Leader asked Mr Chinn to set out the background to the establishment of the Friend's group and the reasons for coming together.

Cabinet noted that the group had come together a year ago in response to a comment from a Park's forum meeting which indicated closure of the Centre. It became apparent that other Councillors supported Centre continuing a year and therefore a 'Friends' group had been formed to support the Centre.

Mr Chinn concluded his deputation by inviting all Cabinet Members to visit the Wolves Lane Horticultural Centre to observe its work and understand its value to the community before making any further decisions.

The Cabinet Member for the Environment thanked the deputation party for making their representations and collating a Petition. The Cabinet Member welcomed local people working together for the future of the Centre and committed to visit the Centre very soon.

The Cabinet Member for Environment advised that the Centre had been granted additional funding until the end of March 2017 and the Friends of Wolves Lane Group would be able to enter the expression of interest process to put forward their case for managing the Centre. They would need to demonstrate that their proposals meet the Council's corporate priorities and are financially sustainable. The Council would continue to work with the Friends group and other organisations.

### 8. MATTERS REFERRED TO CABINET BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Councillor Charles Wright, Chair of Overview and Scrutiny, presented the Scrutiny Review of the CIL [Community Infrastructure Levy] governance arrangements. This was an underdeveloped policy area and arrangements were needed to support allocation of receipts from the CIL to local neighbourhoods.

Councillor Wright was pleased to note that Cabinet were accepting all of the recommendations with actions included on how these recommendations would be implemented.

Cabinet continued to consider the responses to the recommendations at appendix 2.

Councillor Newton welcomed the recommendations and raised some questions in relation to Scrutiny recommendations 4 and 8. They were responded to as follows:

- There were current proposals for a Planning specific training programme for all Members. Further to consulting with the Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning, training on the role of Councillors in the operation of the neighbourhood CIL fund and supporting the community put forward applications, could be included in the programme.
- The Assistant Director for Planning explained that recommendation 4 was
  trying to reflect what is important for community and forums in respect of
  community spending. The Council was already putting together an explicit
  capital programme and would try and capture what is Council and third party
  based funding. This was not exclusive to the 25% infrastructure projects but for

the importance of the CIL regime where there was a degree of discretion and therefore it was important to provide consistent investment that can be set out and consulted upon. The Council would have this investment information through the capital programme which is defined each year.

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. To agree the responses to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Review as set out at appendix 2 of the report.
- 2. To note that where the recommendations have a cost implications, the funding source should be determined by the Chief Operating officer.

#### **Reasons for Decision**

The evidence supporting the Panel's recommendations was outlined in the main body of the report [appendix 1]

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

The evidence supporting the Panel's recommendations was outlined in the main body of the report [appendix 1]. The Cabinet could have chosen not to accept the recommendations, despite endorsement by the Planning service. The Council did not currently have a protocol for the spending of CIL receipts and would have to prepare and adopt an alternative process.

#### 9. THE FUTURE DELIVERY OF WOLVES LANE HORTICULTURAL CENTRE

The Cabinet Member for Environment introduced the report, which was seeking to cease the current service provision at the Wolves Lane Horticultural Centre, and would be asking for expressions of interest to come forward from suitable organisations for management of the site and, as indicated in the deputation, there had been consultation with local groups.

Councillor Wright spoke, in his ward Member capacity, in support of the Friends of Wolves Lane Group, and welcomed the opportunity offered for the Centre to continue provision for a further year.

Cllr Wright highlighted the Horticultural Centre as a positive resource for the community and spoke about the current lack of volunteering opportunities for Adults and young people with learning difficulties and the valuable opportunities for volunteering and work experience available at the Centre.

Councillor Wright hoped that the positive strengths of the Friends group were a good basis for the Centre to move forward from. He further supported the recommendations of the report and hoped the Council would continue working with the group.

In response to Councillor Engert's questions, it was noted that:

- The proposed relocation of depots in Keston Road and Woodside House to Wolves Lane would follow a due process in which the impact of increased heavy vehicles on Wolves Lane would be assessed.
- The designation of part of this site as Metropolitan open land indicated that there was a set remit for how this area can be taken forward and the Council would not exceed this remit.
- The visitor hub for Finsbury Park was an option discussed in the report, but having investigated this option, it was not being pursued.

#### **RESOLVED**

- To cease the current service provision at WLHC [Wolves Lane Horticultural Centre] in April 2017 in line with the findings of the service review detailed in the attached report.
- 2. That expressions of interest for the future use of WLHC be sought from suitably qualified organisations and that the outcomes of this exercise be reported back to Cabinet before the end of 2016.

#### **Reasons for Decision**

The Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out a reduction of £70,000 in the budget of WLHC. Three further internal funding sources were also being removed as a result of actions within the MTFS. As set out in paragraph 11 this would lead to a total funding reduction of £205,000 over the next two years.

Adults and Volunteering Services - All funding for this service was being withdrawn over the next two financial years. The Council was moving away from direct provision of Adult Care and therefore, although personal independence payments may be available for some or all of the service users, this was not an area where the Parks service should continue to operate.

**Education Services** - This service area was subsidised by the Parks service and only recovers around 50% of its cost through fees and charges. The service was well supported by the schools attending but they have indicated that a 100% rise in the cost of visiting would make visits to the site unaffordable. This was not a core area of operation for the Parks service and others may well be better placed to provide such a service.

**Retailing** - The Council has been retailing plants and other garden sundries since it took over the management of the Centre from the previous failing social enterprise in 2009. However, recent legal advice had highlighted that the Council does not have in place the right corporate structure. The surplus produced by the retailing is not significant and therefore does not warrant the overhead of setting up the necessary corporate structure to continue.

**Growing** - The Council currently grows a significant amount of seasonal bedding, shrubs for parks and housing areas and also plants to retail. The Parks service need

for these plants is changing as it moves to more sustainable forms of planting rather than the high maintenance seasonal bedding. In addition it will no longer be retailing and therefore will not need to produce plants to sell. Therefore, in the future the service would require less glass house provision.

**Horticultural Centre Site** - By recommending that most of the current services should cease this would release around 60-70% of the current site. The site is designated Metropolitan Open Land and therefore its future use must be consistent with the constraints currently placed upon it.

#### Alternative options considered

During 2015 a full review of the current services and the funding for those services was completed. The review considered three options for each element of the service: remain as is; improve; and stop. A summary of the review can be found at Appendix 1.

#### 10. WHITE HART LANE STATION APPROACH - ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

The Cabinet Member for Housing, Regeneration and Planning introduced the report which sought approval for the appointment of a multi disciplinary consultancy team to support the Council in delivering the public realm around White Hart Lane Station. The project took into account the response from the public consultation and would provide highways and streetscape improvements along Love Lane, Penhurst Road and White Hart lane between Creighton Road and the High Road. The Transport for London LIP [Local Implementation Plan] would provide vital infrastructure required to progress the High Road West regeneration scheme, approved by Cabinet in December 2014 and wider regeneration, including the Northumberland Park Development project [Spurs Scheme]

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. To award a contract in the sum of £529,560 to Muf Architecture/ArtLLP to undertake the delivery of public realm around White Hart Lane station between High road and Creighton Road and along White hart Lane.
- 2. To approve the use of the £122,000 LIP funding and subject to the Council's Contract Standing Orders delegate authority to spend future funds drawn down from the LIP funding for project delivery.
- 3. To provide delegated authority to the Director of Regeneration, Planning and development, after consultation with the Cabinet Member for Housing and Regeneration to agree any necessary modifications required to the contract in light of any changes to the scheme at no additional cost.

#### **Reasons for Decision**

Delivery of White Hart lane Station and surrounding public realm was a key component in the delivery of High Road West, Northumberland Development Project and the wider regeneration across North Tottenham. This in turn corresponds to the

challenging objectives for improvements in social, economic and physical well-being in the Corporate Plan and associated strategies, Upper Lee Valley Opportunity Area and the London Plan.

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

The Council considered the option to deliver the scheme utilising existing Council resources. However, this option was not feasible due to lack of the skills and capacity necessary to deliver this project.

Failure to deliver the scheme would compromise the ability of the Council to deliver the wider regeneration of North Tottenham due to the impact that the anticipated increases in demands on the station and surrounding public realm would have on the existing infrastructure.

#### 11. ESTABLISHMENT OF CABINET SUB COMMITTEES 2016/17

The Leader introduced the report, which sought agreement to the re-establishment of the Corporate Parenting Cabinet sub-committee with the terms of reference contained at Appendix A and continued the joint committee arrangements with the LHC.

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. That for the 2016/17 municipal year, to establish the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee and the LHC as per the terms of references at Appendix A and B.
- 2. Following political group nominations received after the Cabinet pack was published, the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee Members be as follows:

Councillor Weston Chair, Cllr Stennett,

Cllr Berryman,

Cllr Jennifer Mann

Cllr Opoku

Cllr Hare

**Cllr Morris** 

3. That Councillor Strickland and Councillor John Bevan continue on the LHC board.

#### **Reasons for Decision**

To keep an overview of the Councillors statutory role as a corporate parent to children in care and young people leaving care.

The Council currently uses LHC frameworks as an efficient way of procuring technically complex products and services for its building refurbishment and maintenance programmes.

By becoming a Constituent Member of LHC the Council will benefit from:

- Influencing the future direction of LHC including the identification of new products and services which could be beneficial to the Council.
- Increased learning of procurement practices and technical know-how for use by the Council's officers in carrying out its own procurement programmes.
- Share of the LHC annual surplus.

#### **Alternative Options Considered**

The Constitution advises that all Advisory or Consultative Committees will continue in operation only until the first meeting of the Cabinet, in the next municipal year following their establishment when they must be expressly renewed or they cease to exist. Therefore, the alternative option would be for the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee to cease and this would mean that there is not a scheduled opportunity for Members and officers to meet and discuss the wellbeing of children in care and to ensure that the Council is meeting its corporate parenting obligations. This Committee is different to the Children and Young People's Scrutiny Panel as it concentrates on Looked after Children and care leavers and reports directly to the Cabinet.

Haringey has been a Member of the LHC, formerly the London Housing Consortium, for forty years. In February 2012 the Haringey Cabinet approved a recommendation to remain in the LHC Joint Committee and leaving this consortium would affect accessing some shared procurement expertise and support on compliance.

## 12. CABINET MEMBER APPOINTMENTS FOR 2016/17 TO THE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP (CSP) AND HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD.

The Leader introduced the report which sought approval of Cabinet Member appointments to the Community Safety Partnership and noting of the Cabinet Member appointments to Health and Wellbeing Partnership Board.

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. That the Cabinet Member for Communities and Cabinet Member for Children and Families be appointed to the Community Safety Partnership.
- 2. That Councillor Martin Newton be appointed as the Liberal Democrat representative on the Community Safety Partnership.
- 3. That Cabinet note and approve the Cabinet Members appointed by Full Council on the 16<sup>th</sup> of May to serve on the Health and Wellbeing Partnership Board:
- Leader of the Council
- Cabinet Member for Children and Families

Cabinet Member for Finance and Health

#### Reasons for decision

Appointments from Cabinet are required to both these partnership bodies to reflect statutory duties and enable high level, accountable, strategic, oversight of issues relating community safety and health and wellbeing.

#### Alternative options considered

These are statutory partnerships with legally required participation of the council.

#### 13. MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES

#### **RESOLVED**

To note the minutes of the following meetings:

- Cabinet Member signing on the 8<sup>th</sup> March 2016
- Cabinet Member signing on the 14<sup>th</sup> March 2016
- Cabinet Member signing on the 14<sup>th</sup> of March 2016
- Cabinet Member signing on the 15<sup>th</sup> March 2016
- Cabinet Member signing on the 17<sup>th</sup> March 2016
- Leader's Signing on the 18<sup>th</sup> March 2016

#### 14. SIGNIFICANT AND DELEGATED ACTIONS

Cabinet were asked to note the delegated decisions taken by directors in March and April.

In response to Cllr Engert's questions:

- Agreed that further details are provided to Cllr Engert, by The Tottenham Director, on a delegated decision taken on the 23<sup>rd</sup> of March to vary the Tottenham Housing Zone (Phase1 – south Tottenham - overarching borough agreement. This was likely to have been needed due to a technical variation of funding from the GLA.
- Delegated Action 2, [page 196] this contract extension was connected with the
  continuing estate renewal programme. In November 2013, Cabinet considered
  the potential for partial redevelopment of some medium sized estates in the
  borough. The Council were continuing to facilitate the conversation with
  residents in Park Grove/Durnsford Road, Tunnel gardens/Blake Road and
  Turner Avenue/Brunel about renewal. This was through independent liaison
  officers who had been selected by the residents. The contract with the liaison
  officers was being extended to continue the dialogue.

The Director for Planning, Regeneration and Development confirmed that no final decision had yet been made on what happens with these estates.

#### **RESOLVED**

To note the delegated decisions taken by directors in March and April

#### 15. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

None

#### 16. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

#### **RESOLVED**

That the press and public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting as the items contained exempt information as defined under schedule 12, paragraph 3 of the Local Government Act 1972.

#### 17. WHITE HART LANE STATION APPROACH - ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES

As per item 10.

#### 18. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS

None